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Photo: This photo was taken by Phyllis LeBeau on the occasion of the Library groundbreaking. Historian Cole is presenting a copy of the current abandoned cemetery books to the library. 

Pictured from left to right is Cole, Sandy Creek Village Mayor Grant Rohrmosher, Margaret Miller, Michelle Smith, Marlene Hunter, Town of Sandy Creek Supervisor Margaret Kastler and Sandy Creek Town Councilwoman, Nancy Ridgeway.

A little history on “Old Sandy” and other Oswego County Fairs ! County agricultural societies in New York State began to be formed in 1817 and extended to most of the counties. But, after a brief period they fell into disuse; and that of Jefferson County is the only one of this class that can trace an unbroken descent from that period. (French’s Gazetteer of New York State, 1860)

The first attempt to hold a cattle show in Oswego County was made in the fall of 1832, when cattle breeder Nelson Pitkin of Oswego Town, invited others to join in an informal exhibit of their fine stock and farm implements, etc. in the West Park in Oswego. 

The Oswego County Agricultural Society was organized February 1, 1840 at the Frontier House in Oswego Village. The first exhibition was held October 7, 1840. Two fairs were held in Oswego then the society moved to Fulton and for several years county-wide fairs were held there, and at various times in Mexico, Pulaski, Central Square and other villages; then they were permanently located at Mexico. A fairground was purchased equipped with buildings, shed, race-tracks, etc.  and exhibitions were held there until 1887. After the 1887 exhibition at Mexico, the fair relocated at Oswego in 1888. 

The Oswego Falls Agricultural Society was organized in 1856 and its first exhibition was held in September in New Haven. In 1858 the fair was relocated to Oswego Falls. This fair was operating as the Oswego County Fair in 1906.

Other town agricultural societies have existed in Oswego County at various times:

· Constantia Town Agricultural Society 1857-1860

· New Haven Agricultural Society 1859

· Oswego Town Agricultural and Horticultural Society 1870

· Phoenix Agricultural Society 1872

· Sandy Creek, Richland, Orwell and Boylston Agricultural Society “Old Sandy” 1858

By the 1920s, “Old Sandy” was apparently the only agricultural fair left in this county. Eventually, the SCRO&B Agricultural Society was expanded to include the whole of Oswego County, officially becoming the Oswego County Fair Association in the mid-1980s.

B. D. Jones wrote in the Centennial Souvenir History, Sandy Creek, NY 1925: “One of the oldest institutions of the town is the Sandy Creek, Richland, Orwell & Boylston Agricultural Society, which was organized in 1858 for the “Promotion of Agriculture, Horticulture, Mechanical and Household Arts. The first fair of two days was held that year on the present grounds of the society then owned by Oren R. Earl, who was most enthusiastic in the organization and later presented the grounds to the society. The first officers were Oren R. Earl, President; Edmond H. Sargent, Secretary; Pitt M. Newton, Treasurer; Minot A. Pruyn, General Superintendent. All labors necessary in fitting the grounds and making the race track were freely given by the citizens, and the only equipment for the first fair were two long tables, on one was a display of dairy products, grain and vegetables, and on the other quilting, fancy needlework, etc. The fee to membership in the society was one dollar a year, which permitted the members to compete for premiums, admitted his family to the grounds during the fair and allowed him to vote at the annual meeting. There is no known record of the financial receipts of the first fair, but it is safe to assume that they were quite small; but personal interest and enthusiasm were much in evidence. From this small beginnings the grounds have been improved and extended, many buildings erected and the society expanded.”

Sandy Creek History Center staff (Sally Turo, Irene Fuller and Phyllis LeBeau) have completed display panels for the 150th Oswego County Fair. The panels have before and after photographs documenting the history of our villages. The changes are amazing and cover several periods in history. Please stop by the Sandy Creek/Lacona booth to see these amazing photos and get a look at the newest veterans book, “Veterans of Sandy Creek who served from September 3, 1945 to December 31, 1959” will be available November 2007 and we are looking for additions and corrections to this book. 

Come to the County Fair and celebrate 150 years of history. Admission and parking is free. 

Charlene
